

Executive Committee of the Morro Bay National Estuary Program

BYLAWS

1. Purposes of the Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is formed pursuant to the Morro Bay National Estuary Program Comprehensive Conservation and Management Plan (CCMP). The Executive Committee is the key decision-making body for the Morro Bay National Estuary Program. It provides broad policy direction, approves priorities for CCMP implementation, seeks and develops funding sources, and approves CCMP changes, as necessary. The Executive Committee is a successor to the Local Policy Committee described in the Consent Decree's Memorandum of Agreement between the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, the Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board, the Bay Foundation of Morro Bay, and the Local Policy Committee. The Executive Committee provides the following specific functions:

- Approves requests for funding through the Morro Bay Estuary Restoration Fund. Such requests are also subject to approval from the Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board Executive Officer or their designee and the Bay Foundation of Morro Bay pursuant to the CCMP and Consent Decree.
- Provides input regarding the performance of the Executive Director to the Bay Foundation of Morro Bay, focused on whether the mission of the Morro Bay National Estuary Program is being furthered, and of its own performance.
- Provides leadership and overall direction.
- Resolves disputes that may arise among committees and working groups established by the Executive Committee and Technical Advisory Committee.
- Approves the annual Morro Bay National Estuary Program workplan required by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. The annual workplan may include staff resources to assist other organizations in grant and project development, as needed.
- Provides oversight of the Executive Director's annual workplan through the approval of the annual Morro Bay National Estuary Program workplan.
- Participates with the Bay Foundation of Morro Bay in the searching and screening process of applicants for the Executive Director position, as needed.

2. Membership

- a. <u>Representatives of key organizations and agencies.</u> The following organizations and agencies shall appoint a representative as a member of the Executive Committee:
 - The Bay Foundation
 - Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board
 - U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
 - City of Morro Bay
 - City of Morro Bay Harbor Department
 - County of San Luis Obispo
 - Los Osos Community Services District

Organizations and agencies may also appoint an alternate to the member to participate when the member is unavailable. Appointees of these organizations and agencies serve at the pleasure of the governing boards of their organizations or agencies.

- b. <u>Representatives of specific interests in the watershed and estuary.</u> In addition, there shall be one member, and an alternate to participate when that member is unavailable, representing the following interests:
 - Watershed Land Management (*this seat will prioritize members with connections to local agriculture when feasible*)
 - Commercial Fishing
 - Environment
 - At-Large Government Agencies
 - Recreation and Tourism
 - Science and Research

The terms of the representatives of all these interests, shall be three years.

Whenever a vacancy arises among the representatives (or alternates) of these specific interests, the Executive Committee shall form a nominating subcommittee who shall provide the names of people willing and qualified to serve in this capacity. Representatives and alternates shall be approved by a majority of the seated Executive Committee members.

- c. Input from the Technical Advisory Committee. Staff coordinate and manage the Technical Advisory Committees (TACs). All feedback and input from TAC members will be compiled by staff and conveyed to the Executive Committee to guide decision-making, workplan tasks, etc.
- d. <u>Compensation</u>. All members serve without direct compensation from the Morro Bay National Estuary Program. No travel expenses will be paid to representatives for attending Committee meetings.

3. Meetings

- a. <u>Frequency.</u> The Committee shall generally meet quarterly on the third Wednesday in February, May, August and November. However, the Committee may call additional meetings as deemed useful and may otherwise adjust this general schedule for the convenience of the members or the needs of the Estuary Program.
- b. <u>Format.</u> At the discretion of the committee, meetings may be held either in person or virtually (e.g., via a platform such as Zoom, Teams, etc.). For meetings held in person, participants may attend via a conference call (audio only).
- c. <u>Notice</u>. Members shall be noticed by email, or other medium acceptable to the member, at least seven days prior to a meeting. Notice shall include the tentative agenda and materials, and time and place of the meeting. However, failure to provide such notice or failure to receive such notice by a member will not preclude meetings from proceeding.
- d. Public Meetings. All Committee meetings shall be open to the public and shall provide for a public comment period during which items not on the agenda may be raised. Meeting dates, times, locations, and agendas are shared on the Morro Bay National Estuary Program website.

The Committee will not act on any item not listed on the agenda, except (a) items that are simply informational or procedural in nature, and (b) if at least two-thirds of the Committee agrees that there is a serious time constraint that requires action on that item prior to the next meeting.

- d.e. Accommodations. If committee members, guests, or members of the public require reasonable accommodations to attend or fully participate in meetings, staff may be contacted prior to the meeting to make arrangements.
- e.<u>f. Closed Sessions.</u> The Committee shall not meet in closed session except for personnel and litigation matters. In such cases, the Committee Chair shall announce the general nature of the matter and explain why it is necessary to hold a closed session. After any such closed session, the Chair shall describe in general terms any action taken by the Committee.

4. Officers

- a. <u>Chair and Vice Chair.</u> The Committee shall elect a Chair and Vice-Chair from among its members at the first meeting of each even numbered year or as needed. Term of the officers shall be two years. No one shall serve more than two consecutive terms as Chair or as Vice-Chair.
- b. <u>Secretary</u>. The Morro Bay National Estuary Executive Director or his/her assignee shall be the secretary of the Committee.
- c. <u>Duties.</u> The Chair shall be authorized to sign legally binding documents on behalf of the Executive Committee. The Chair may appoint subcommittees. The Vice-Chair shall have all the authority of the Chair in the Chair's absence.

The Chair shall preside over the meetings; the Vice-Chair shall preside in the absence of the Chair. However, the Committee Chair may authorize the Executive Director or their designee to preside over Committee meetings for purposes of facilitating the meetings. In all cases, the Executive Director or their designee shall not have a vote on motions.

The Secretary shall keep minutes of the meetings and records of actions and resolutions of the Committee.

5. Technical Advisory Committee Membership

Staff recruit and select members of the Technical Advisory Committees.

6. Conflicts of Interests

Members shall avoid conflicts of interest as defined by applicable State and federal laws or regulations. In cases where a member's agency or organization has applied for funding from the Morro Bay National Estuary Program, that member may present the agency's or organization's proposal and may answer questions from the Committee if like opportunities are provided for other applicants for funding. However, the member may not participate in subsequent discussions and shall not vote on such requests.

7. Non-Discrimination

The Bay Foundation of Morro Bay dba the Morro Bay National Estuary Program does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, disability, age, or sex in administration of its programs or activities, and, the Bay Foundation of Morro Bay does not intimidate or retaliate against any individual or group because they have exercised their rights to participate in actions protected, or oppose action prohibited, by 40 C.F.R. Parts 5 and 7, or for the purpose of interfering with such rights. Melodie Grubbs, Executive Director, is responsible for coordination of compliance efforts and receipt of inquiries concerning non-discrimination requirements implemented by 40 C.F.R. Parts 5 and 7 (Non-discrimination in Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Assistance from the Environmental Protection Agency), including Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; the Age Discrimination Act of 1975; Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; and Section 13 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972 (hereinafter referred to collectively as the federal non-discrimination laws).

For questions about this notice or any of the Bay Foundation of Morro Bay's non-discrimination programs, policies or procedures, contact: Melodie Grubbs, Executive Director, The Bay Foundation of Morro Bay, 601 Embarcadero, Suite 11, Morro Bay, CA 93442, 805-772-3834, -ndo@mbnep.org

If you believe that you have been discriminated against with respect to a Bay Foundation of Morro Bay program or activity, contact the Executive Director or visit our website at www.mbnep.org to learn how and where to file a complaint of discrimination.

7.8. Roberts Rules of Order

The Committee shall operate under Robert's Rules of Order (casually interpreted).

8.9. Voting

- a. <u>Regular Meeting</u>. A majority of the seated members shall constitute a quorum. Passage of any motion requires a simple majority of the members present. In absence of a quorum, discussion may be held but no formal action shall be taken except to adjourn the meeting to a subsequent date.
- b. <u>Email Voting</u>. If the Executive Director and the Chair determine that action is required on an item prior to the next meeting of the Executive Committee, an email ballot may be used to obtain the unanimous written consent of the members. The cover email must clearly explain that their formal unambiguous unanimous written consent is being solicited and that the action will not take effect unless all of the members approve it. The email responses shall be filed with the minutes. The Committee will ratify any such action at the next Committee meeting.

9.<u>10.</u> Minutes

Minutes will be taken at all meetings; however, the style shall be "action" minutes that emphasize actions taken by the Committee. At each meeting, the previous meeting's minutes shall be approved.

10.11. Amendments to the By-laws

By-laws may be modified by a two-thirds vote of all members of the Committee. All proposed amendments shall be submitted in writing at least 7 days in advance of any action.

Amended: January 22, 2024 Approved: February 15, 2023February 21, 2024